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1/21/2021 ABAG Executive Board Meeting 

 Agenda Item No. 11.b—Adoption of Draft RHNA Methodology  
 
Dear President Arreguin and ABAG Executive Board: 
 
On behalf of the Department of Planning and Development for the County of Santa Clara 
(County), I am writing to restate the County’s objections regarding Association of Bay Area 
Government’s (ABAG) proposed adoption of Option 8a as the Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation (RHNA) distribution methodology at its meeting on January 21, 2021 (Agenda Item 
No. 11.b).  This letter identifies oversights in the draft methodology and the resulting policy 
conflicts that arise from a RHNA of 3,156 housing units for the County of Santa Clara 
unincorporated area.   
 
This letter supplements the November 3, 2020 letter from Cindy Chavez, Santa Clara County 
Board of Supervisors (Attachment A), to President Jesse Arreguin stating objections to the 
Option 8a methodology and the RHNA assigned to the County.  The County recognizes that 
following the December 17, 2020 release of the Plan Bay Area final blueprint, the County’s 
RHNA has decreased from 4,139 housing units to 3,156 units.   
 
As stated in the November 3, 2020 letter, the unincorporated County is primarily rural. 
Approximately 99% of the land within the County’s jurisdiction is located outside of the urban 
service areas that provide municipal sewer and water services.  The rural unincorporated County 
encompasses important agriculture lands and provides critical habitat and natural resources that 
support biological diversity and sustainability in the greater region.  As a result, the County’s 
General Plan has strong regional growth policies that protect the rural areas from urbanization, 
directing growth into the urban areas, including the cities and unincorporated area subject to city 
annexation.   
 
The County continues to be a strong leader in increasing housing production to meet the ongoing 
housing crisis in the Bay Area, including sponsoring the adoption of Measure A, a $950 million 
dollar affordable housing bond approved by voters in 2016.  However, the County strives to 
balance housing production with long term sustainability and greenhouse gas reduction goals.  
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To this end, the County supports housing development in urban areas closer to job centers and 
public transit, lowering Vehicle Miles Traveled and Greenhouse Gas Emissions.   
 
The proposed Option 8a methodology that would result in a RHNA of 3,156 units to the County, 
represents over a 1,000% increase compared to the previous RHNA cycle and would require the 
County to rezone rural areas for urban housing development, conflicting with the County’s 
General Plan and sustainability and greenhouse gas reduction goals within State law (AB 32) and 
the Plan Bay Area 2050 Blueprint. As identified in the November 3, 2020 letter, the County has 
determined it has the capacity to support approximately 2,000 units within the urban 
unincorporated areas, using a variety of housing production strategies.   
 
We believe the conflict between the proposed RHNA for the County and these critical 
sustainability policies result from several oversights in ABAG’s draft methodology process.  
First, in selecting a methodology, ABAG must consider the opportunities and constraints to 
development of additional housing in each jurisdiction.  See Gov’t Code § 65584.04(e)(2).  
Among these factors is “the availability of land suitable for urban development or for conversion 
to residential use, the availability of underutilized land, and opportunities for infill development 
and increased residential densities.”  Id. § 65584.04(e)(2)(B).  As described, approximately 99% 
of the land within the County’s jurisdiction is in the rural areas, and the County maintains 
policies for the urban unincorporated areas that encourage their annexation into the Cities.  
 
Based on conversations with ABAG staff, ABAG estimates that 2,000 units can be sited at 
Moffett Field/NASA Ames Research Center to meet RHNA requirements.  While Moffett Field 
is located within the unincorporated County, the federal government owns this land and is 
immune from local land use regulation.  As such, the County has no authority to zone or convert 
this land for residential use, and thus the County cannot demonstrate the necessary capacity in its 
Zoning Ordinance for housing on these federal lands.   
 
Second, in selecting a draft methodology, ABAG must further the intent of the statutory 
objectives listed in subdivision (d) of Government Code section 65584, including “[p]romoting 
infill development and socioeconomic equity, the protection of environmental and agricultural 
resources, the encouragement of efficient development patterns, and the achievement of the 
region's greenhouse gas reductions targets provided by the State Air Resources Board pursuant to 
Section 65080.”  Gov’t Code § 65584(d)(2).  As identified in the November 3, 2020 letter, it 
appears that an assignment of RHNA of 3,156 to the County of Santa Clara unincorporated area, 
requiring urban housing in the County’s rural areas, conflicts with this statutory objective.  
Locating new housing units in these rural areas will impact environmental and agricultural 
resources, discourage efficient development patterns, and undermine greenhouse gas reduction 
targets by promoting urban sprawl.    
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We respectfully ask ABAG to adequately consider the statutorily mandated methodology criteria 
and identify and implement a modification to Option 8a that is consistent with the statutory 
objectives. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment.  
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
 
 
 
 
 
Jacqueline R. Onciano 
Director, Department of Planning and Development 
 
Attachment A:  November 3, 2020 Letter from Cindy Chavez to ABAG President 

 








